
 

 

 

Community Services and Land Use Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls 

Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort 

Monday, January 08, 2024 
3:00 PM 

AGENDA 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
            ALICE HOWARD, CHAIR                                         YORK GLOVER, VICE-CHAIRMAN 
            GERALD DAWSON                                                  PAULA BROWN 
             THOMAS REITZ                        JOSEPH PASSIMENT, EX-OFFICIO 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD- 15 MINUTES TOTAL  

Anyone who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the meeting will limit their 
comments and speak no longer than three (3) minutes. Speakers will address Council in a respectful 
manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the use of profane, abusive, or 
obscene language. In accordance with Beaufort County's Rules and Procedures, giving of a speaker's 
time to another is not allowed. 

6. ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT- Chuck Atkinson & Audra Antonacci-Ogden 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

7. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 2022/51, WHICH AUTHORIZED THE 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT TO JOINTLY CREATE, 
FUND, AND OPERATE A REGIONAL HOUSING TRUST FUND, TO ESTABLISH AN OVERSIGHT BOARD TO 
OVERSEE THE FUND, AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE FUND (FISCAL IMPACT - 
Adoption of the amended resolution would have no fiscal impact on the County. The County would 
simply contract with B-JHT to provide the services that Community Works provided in 2023 on the same 
terms) - Thomas J. Keaveny, II, County Attorney 

1



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

8. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO 
AN AGREEMENT WITH THE BEAUFORT-JASPER HOUSING TRUST, INC. TO PROVIDE MANAGEMENT AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT SERVICES OVER THE REGIONAL HOUSING TRUST FUND (FISCAL IMPACT: The 
proposed compensation for B-JHT under the attached agreement is the same as the compensation for 
Community Works under the existing agreement) - Thomas J. Keaveny, II, County Attorney 

9. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE PASSIVE PARKS DEPARTMENT BUSINESS USE 
POLICY, APPLICATION AND FEE SCHEDULE - Stefanie Nagid, Passive Parks Director  

10. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF CAMP ST. MARY’S PARK CONCEPTUAL PLAN (FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A) - 
Stefanie Nagid, Passive Parks Director 

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO 
EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS AND TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF TAX MAP 
SERIAL NUMBER TMS R600-021-000-0078-0000 AND ALSO KNOWN AS BARRELL LANDING ORR - Amanda 
Flake, Natural Resource Planner 

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO UNDERTAKE DUE DILIGENCE AND DISCUSSIONS/NEGOTIATIONS FOR THE 
PROPOSED FEE SIMPLE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS RAWSTROM ROAD - Amanda Flake, 
Natural Resource Planner 

13. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO UNDERTAKE DUE DILIGENCE AND DISCUSSIONS/NEGOTIATIONS FOR THE 
PROPOSED FEE SIMPLE PURCHASE OR PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS OF REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS 
SEASIDE ROAD - Amanda Flake, Natural Resource Planner 

14. ADJOURNMENT 

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND 
BACKUP PACKAGES, PLEASE VISIT: 

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html 

2

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html


iQWNTY COUNCIi. (h.-nm.. $eft/. 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 18T PORTION· 
� d� AG�NDA ITEMS ONLY 

--Ii-DATE: 9 :2-4::'
,.e, 

<? 1 ,-d 
PRINT FULL NAME: 6� �£H/.t,l ... LA--

Agenda Item to be addressed: /J &?$If/& ;z>.?l::1¥;$ 

3

Item 5.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 2022/51 WHICH AUTHORIZED THE 

COUNTY ADMNISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

AGREEMENT TO JOINTLY CREATE, FUND, AND OPERATE A REGIONAL HOUSING 

TRUST FUND, TO ESTABLISH AN OVERSIGHT BOARD TO OVERSEE THE FUND, AND 

TO PROVIDE FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE FUND 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services and Land Use Committee, January 2, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Thomas J. Keaveny, II 

County Attorney 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

In September 2022, Council adopted Resolution 2022/51. It authorized the County 

Administrator to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with Jasper County, Town of 

Hilton Head Island, Town of Bluffton, City of Hardeeville, Town of Port Royal, City of 

Beaufort and Town of Yemassee to establish, fund, and operate a regional housing trust fund. 

All the governmental entities listed above signed the agreement. The trust fund was created, 

the oversight board was appointed, and on January 12, 2023 Beaufort County entered into a 

three (3) year agreement with Community Works (in Greenville, SC) to manage the fund all as 

set forth in the intergovernmental agreement. Subsequently, the oversight board incorporated 

into a non-profit (as allowed by the intergovernmental agreement). It is now known as the 

Beaufort-Jasper Housing Trust, Inc. (B-JHT). It received 501(c)(3) status from the IRS in June 

2023. Since then, B-JHT has expressed a desire to assume management of the fund from 

Community Works and Community Works has indicated it has no objection to the change. 

The agreement between Beaufort County and Community Works allows the parties to 

terminate the three (3) year agreement by mutual consent. Administration has no objection to 

terminating the agreement with Community Works nor does it object to contracting with B-

JHT to assume management of the fund. All the governmental partners to the IGA have 

indicated their consent to this change. However, Administration needs Council’s approval to 

the change. Council also needs to adopt a resolution amending the original resolution and 

accompanying IGA which indicated the fund would be managed by Community Works. An 

amended resolution is provided for Council’s consideration and adoption if Council is so 

inclined.   

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

See above 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Adoption of the amended resolution would have no fiscal impact on the County. The County 

would simply contract with B-JHT to provide the services that Community Works provided in 

2023 on the same terms.   

4

Item 7.



STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Administration believes Council should adopt the amended resolution. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Adopt the amended resolution as proposed, modify the amended resolution or not adopt it. 

 

5

Item 7.



AMENDED RESOLUTION 2022.51 DRAFT 3 12.21.2023 

RESOLUTION 2024/_____ 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 2022/51 WHICH AUTHORIZED THE 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

AGREEMENT TO JOINTLY CREATE, FUND, AND OPERATE A REGIONAL 

HOUSING TRUST FUND, TO ESTABLISH AN OVERSIGHT BOARD TO OVERSEE 

THE FUND, TO PROVIDE FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE FUND AND OTHER 

MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

WHEREAS,  on the twenty-second day of September, 2022 County Council adopted 

Resolution 2022/51 which authorized the County Administrator to enter into an intergovernmental 

agreement with Jasper County, Town of Hilton Head Island, Town of Bluffton, Town of Port 

Royal, City of Beaufort, City of Hardeeville, and the Town of Yemassee to jointly create and fund 

a regional  housing trust fund (“RHTF” or “Fund”),  to establish an Oversight Board for the Fund, 

and to contract with Community Works to provide for the managerial and administrative, day-to-

day operation of the Fund; and  

WHEREAS, Resolution 2022/51 incorporated an exhibit entitled Intergovernmental 

Agreement Regarding Affordable Housing; and 

WHEREAS, County Council now desires to amend the Intergovernmental Agreement as 

reflected in Exhibit A due to developments that have occurred since the Agreement was executed; 

and   

WHEREAS, the primary amendments appear in two sections of the Agreement. First, 

Section 4.c.iii is amended to indicate that in 2023 the Oversight Board voted to become a non-

profit corporation known as the Beaufort-Jasper Housing Trust, Inc. (“B-JHT” or “Trust”) (a South 

Carolina Corporation), which the Internal Revenue Service subsequently determined is exempt 

from federal income tax under IRC Sections 501(c)(3), and that the Trust will hire staff to manage 

the day to day operations of the Fund (which Community Works has performed up to this point) 

to include hiring and firing of personnel, negotiating potential workforce housing agreements, and 

other items that require approval as outlined in the bylaws which the Oversight Board (now B-

JHT) adopted in 2023; and  

WHEREAS, the second amendment is to Section 6 which is amended to indicate that 

Beaufort County will contract with the B-JHT, rather than with Community Works, to serve as the 

fiscal agent of the Fund.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Beaufort County Council that 

Resolution 2022/51 is amended and that the Interim County Administrator is hereby authorized to 

enter into an Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Affordable and 

Workforce Housing, substantially similar in form and content to Exhibit A, with Jasper County, 

Town of Hilton Head Island, Town of Bluffton, Town of Port Rort Royal, City of Beaufort, City 

of Hardeeville, and the Town of Yemassee. 

 

6

Item 7.



AMENDED RESOLUTION 2022.51 DRAFT 3 12.21.2023 

 

DONE this ________day of _______________, 2024 

       

            BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

       

 

____________________________________ 

     Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk of Council  
 

7

Item 7.



8

Item 7.



9

Item 7.



10

Item 7.



11

Item 7.



12

Item 7.



13

Item 7.



14

Item 7.



15

Item 7.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE BEAUFORT-JASPER HOUSING TRUST, INC. TO 

PROVIDE MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT SERVICES OVER THE 

REGIONAL HOUSING TRUST FUND 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services and Land Use Committee, January 8, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Thomas J. Keaveny, II 

County Attorney 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

 In September 2022, Council adopted Resolutions 2022/50 and 2022/51. Resolution 2022/51 

authorized the County Administrator to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with Jasper 

County, Town of Hilton Head Island, Town of Bluffton, City of Hardeeville, Town of Port 

Royal, City of Beaufort, and Town of Yemassee to establish, fund, and operate a regional 

housing trust fund. It also authorized the creation of an oversight board and provided that 

Beaufort County would enter into a contract with Community Works in Greenville, SC to 

provide management and administrative services to the fund for the board. All the 

governmental entities signed the agreement. Pursuant to the intergovernmental agreement the 

trust fund was created and the oversight board was appointed. Resolution 2022/50 authorized 

the County Administrator to enter into the agreement that Resolution 2022/51 contemplated. 

Throughout 2023 Community Works coordinated its services with the oversight board. In 

2023 the oversight board incorporated into a non-profit (as allowed by the intergovernmental 

agreement). The board is now known as the Beaufort-Jasper Housing Trust, Inc. (B-JHT). The 

non-profit corporation received 501(c)(3) status from the IRS in June 2023. B-JHT has now 

expressed a desire to assume management and administrative responsibilities over the fund 

from Community Works. This resolution, if adopted, would authorize the County 

Administrator to contract with B-JHT to provide these services. The agreement that is attached 

to the resolution is substantially the same as the agreement that exists today between Beaufort 

County and Community Works. Unless it is terminated by mutual agreement of the parties, the 

agreement with Community Works is valid for two (2) more years.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

See above. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The proposed compensation for B-JHT under the attached agreement is the same as the 

compensation for Community Works under the existing agreement.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Administration recommends approval of the resolution. 

16

Item 8.



OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve the resolution and exhibit, motion to deny the resolution and exhibit, 

motion to amend. 

(Move forward to Council for First Reading/Approval/Adoption on date?) 

 

17

Item 8.



RESOLUTION /AGREEMENT AUTHORIZING WORKFORCE HOUSING MGMT WITH B-JHT  FINAL - 12.18.23 

RESOLUTION 2024/_____ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO 

ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH BEAUFORT-JASPER HOUSING TRUST, INC. 

TO PROVIDE ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT SUPPORT FOR A 

REGIONAL HOUSING TRUST FUND  

WHEREAS, in 2022 Beaufort County (the “County”), Jasper County, the Town of Hilton 

Head Island, the Town of Bluffton, City of Hardeeville, City of Beaufort, Town of Port Royal and 

Town of Yemassee (“Parties”) entered into an intergovernmental agreement to create, fund, and 

operate a regional housing trust fund (“RHTF” or “Fund”)), to establish an Oversight Board, and 

to provide for the administration of the RHTF; and 

WHEREAS, the 2022 intergovernmental agreement permitted the -Oversight Board to 

make decisions on how the RHTF will operate to include whether to establish a 501(c)(3), which 

the Board decided to do, and which now operates under the name of Beaufort-Jasper Housing 

Trust, Inc. (“B-JHT”); and  

WHEREAS, the 2022 intergovernmental agreement also provided that, on behalf of the 

Parties, Beaufort County would, and did, enter into a contract (substantially similar in form and 

content to Exhibit A) with CommunityWorks to serve as the fiscal agent of the RHTF and further 

providing that Beaufort County would manage the financial relationship with the Parties, 

Community Works, and the Oversight Board; and 

WHEREAS,  CommunityWorks has expressed a desire to terminate the contract and B-

JHT has expressed a desire to enter into a contract with Beaufort County (substantially similar in 

from and content to Exhibit A) to assume the responsibilities of the fiscal agent for the RHTF. The 

Parties have conferred and agree to terminate the contract with CommunityWorks and to enter into 

a contract with B-JHT to serve as the fiscal agent; and 

WHEREAS, County Council finds that authorizing the Interim County Administrator to 

enter into an agreement substantially similar to Exhibit A is in the best interest of the County, the 

Parties,  their citizens, and residents.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by Beaufort County Council that the Interim 

County Administrator is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement substantially similar to 

Exhibit A with B-JHT to provide administration and management support for the Regional housing 

Trust Fund.DONE this __________ day of __________________, 2024 

 

      

            BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

       

 

____________________________________ 

     Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

18

Item 8.



RESOLUTION /AGREEMENT AUTHORIZING WORKFORCE HOUSING MGMT WITH B-JHT  FINAL - 12.18.23 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk of Council  

 

19

Item 8.



RESOLUTION /AGREEMENT AUTHORIZING WORKFORCE HOUSING MGMT WITH B-JHT  FINAL - 12.18.23 

 

20

Item 8.



21

Item 8.



22

Item 8.



23

Item 8.



24

Item 8.



25

Item 8.



26

Item 8.



27

Item 8.



28

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE PASSIVE PARKS DEPARTMENT BUSINESS USE POLICY, APPLICATION AND FEE 
SCHEDULE 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services and Land Use Committee; January 8, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Stefanie M. Nagid, Passive Parks Director (10 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

On December 11, 2023, County Council referred this item back to Committee. Revisions were made to the 
original submittal based on County Council feedback. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

County staff have been informed of numerous businesses using passive park properties without prior 
approval, scheduling or compensation to the County for those activities. Business use of County passive parks 
can negatively affect the primary conservation goals of passive parks, public visitor enjoyment, other 
scheduled events on the properties, and the duties of the Passive Park Naturalist. Staff feel a specific policy, 
use application and fee schedule is necessary to appropriately manage business use on passive park 
properties to manage overuse of conservation land, avoid public/private user conflicts, ensure appropriate 
coordination with the County’s Naturalist, and to appropriately compensate the County for business use of 
public land. One of the duties of the County’s Naturalist is to maintain a programming schedule, including 
those approved through the submitted policy. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The policy would provide revenue to the County as indicated in the policy’s fee schedule. These funds would 
be placed in the Passive Parks Department Special Revenue Fund (Fund 2005) for continued property 
maintenance due to the use of passive park properties. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the policy as submitted. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve, modify or deny adoption of the Passive Parks Department Business Use Policy, 
Application and Fee Schedule. 

If recommended for approval, move forward to County Council for final approval on January 22, 2024. 

 

29

Item 9.



RESOLUTION 2024/__ 

 

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE PASSIVE PARKS DEPARTMENT BUSINESS USE 

POLICY, APPLICATION AND FEE SCHEDULE 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County has acquired over 14,000 acres of fee-simple properties through the Rural 

and Critical Lands Preservation Program for the purposes of conservation, and anticipates acquiring 

additional fee-simple properties through the Green Space Program; and  

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County foresees the development of many of the properties into passive parks for 

the general public’s use and enjoyment; and 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County acknowledges the definition of conservation is "a careful preservation and 

protection of something, especially the planned management of a natural resource to prevent exploitation, 

destruction, or neglect"; and  

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County understands and recognizes the benefits of open space and passive outdoor 

recreation on community health and vibrancy, tourism, education, and quality of life for its citizens; and 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County manages the use of passive park properties through Chapter 91 of the 

Beaufort County Code, as well as other administratively issued policies and procedures; and 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County understands and recognizes a balance is needed between protection of 

conservation values, public access and enjoyment, and business use of passive park properties; and 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County desires to provide the use of passive park properties, structures, buildings, 

rooms, and other appropriate amenities to businesses that are compatible with the conservation and 

passive recreation mission and goals of the Passive Parks Department; and 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County acknowledges that any funds generated through the Business Use Policy 

will be maintained in the Passive Parks Department Special Revenue Fund, which is used for continued 

property maintenance due to use of the properties. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA adopts the Passive Park Department Business Use Policy, Application 

and Fee Schedule that is attached hereto and incorporated herein as fully as if repeated verbatim. 

 

Adopted this ____ day of _______________, 2024. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

 

      BY:        

       Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

     

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

30

Item 9.



January 2024 
 

1 

Beaufort County Passive Parks Department 

Business Use Policy, Application and Fee Schedule 

Applicability 

This business use policy applies to all Passive Park properties, buildings and structures (collectively 

referred to as “property”), owned by Beaufort County. All requests for business use on Passive Park 

properties are subject to this policy. Any questions can be directed to the County’s Passive Parks 

Director at (843) 255-2152.   

Any nonprofit organization and/or association, educational institution, or for-profit individual, limited 

liability corporation, and/or incorporated corporation desiring to utilize Passive Park property is required 

to obtain a permit for such activity. This includes those who invite the general public to attend the 

activity, those who charge attendees admission/fees to participate in the activity, and/or any 

recreational activity including, but not limited to, a run/walk, educational class, ecotour, or fitness class. 

Proof of applicable business license(s) and insurance is required, as detailed in the Insurance, Licenses 

and Liability section of this document.  

Depending on the desired use details and the property requested for use, certain restrictions may apply 

and will be discussed with the applicant upon application submittal. The requested use may require the 

completion of a Facility Rental Application depending upon the details provided by the applicant. 

Applicants will be held responsible for all costs associated with replacement, repair, and/or cleaning of 

the property if damage occurs during the applicant’s use of said property. 

Applicants desiring to use a Passive Park property on a reoccurring basis may be denied use on certain 

dates by the Passive Parks Department Director due to availability because of other scheduled events or 

uses, or other factors as detailed in the Property Use section of this document. Applicants requesting a 

reoccurring use will be required to provide a detailed schedule with their permit application. 

Nonprofit organizations/associations and educational institutions may request a waiver of any fees. 

Proof of their status will be required to be submitted with any fee waiver request. 

Application Process 

The Passive Park business use permit process begins with the submittal of a completed application 

(Exhibit A) to the County Passive Parks Director. Receipt of an application should not be construed as 

final approval. The Passive Parks Director, or their representative, will contact the applicant upon receipt 

of the application and thereafter will serve as the primary point of contact. Applicants are responsible to 

contact any other affected County departments and/or public agencies with regard to related permits or 

licenses that may be required to conduct business in Beaufort County and/or its local municipalities. 

31

Item 9.



January 2024 
 

2 

Applications will be reviewed and approved on a first-come, first-serve basis. All required documents 

(i.e. certificate of insurance, business license(s), nonprofit status, etc.) must be provided with the 

application in order for it to be considered a complete application. 

Applicants must complete the entire application, Exhibit A, and submit it at least ten (10) business days 

prior to the requested date of requested use. The application may be submitted via mail, hand delivery, 

or email to the Beaufort County Passive Parks Director at: 

Passive Parks Department                   

c/o Passive Parks Director                 

124 Lady’s Island Drive                      

Beaufort, SC  29907                   

snagid@bcgov.net  

Payment and Cancellation 

Upon receipt of an application, the Passive Parks Director, or their representative, will provide a notice 

to the applicant to inform them if the application for use has been approved or denied. This will 

normally occur at least seven (7) business days prior to the date of the requested use of the property. If 

approved, the applicant will be notified of the use fee due to the County for the use of the property in 

the approval notification. The entire fee must be received by the County at least three (3) business days 

prior to the date the applicant is to use the property. Payment shall be by check or money order made 

out to “Beaufort County” (cash is not accepted). If payment is not received by the due date, the permit 

will be revoked and the applicant will not be permitted to use the property. 

Any cancellation or change to the application must be submitted in writing by the applicant to the 

Passive Parks Director no less than two (2) business days prior to the requested use date. Refund of the 

use fee, less a 25% service charge, will be made to the applicant if notice is provided within the allocated 

time frame. Refunds will be made by the Beaufort County Finance Department and will be mailed within 

thirty (30) days of cancellation. No refunds will be issued for any cancellation within two (2) business 

days of the requested use date. Any cancellation made within two (2) business days of the requested 

use date may be rescheduled by the applicant, at no additional cost, through written notification to the 

Passive Parks Director. 

The County reserves the right to deny any application for use of a Passive Park property for any reason. 

Any permit issued for use of a property may be revoked by the Passive Parks Director in the case of 

property abuse by an applicant or their guests. The Passive Parks Director may deny future applications 

for a permit to use property if an applicant or any of their guests does not abide by the terms of their 

permit or abuses the property during their use. 

Property Conditions 

All Passive Park properties and facilities are available on an “as is” basis. Beaufort County does not 

provide any additional services, equipment, or amenities than what are currently existing on the 

32

Item 9.

mailto:snagid@bcgov.net


January 2024 
 

3 

property. Applicants are responsible for providing all additional amenities desired for their requested 

use. All anchoring and signage must be accomplished with weights (i.e. sandbags, concrete/water filled 

barrels, etc.). Ground disturbance, soil disturbance, digging, fastening, or attaching to any tree, shrub, or 

park feature is strictly prohibited. Any settings or structures must be self-supporting, temporary and 

portable. If the applicant is going to provide, sell, or serve any food or beverages, then that will be 

considered an “Event”, and the applicant must submit a Facility Rental Application. The approved fee 

schedule will then be required for this event. 

Applicants are responsible for the set-up, clean up, off-site trash disposal and reset of the property 

within their requested use time frame. The start time designated on the application is when the 

applicant will arrive on the property to begin set-up and use of the property. The end time designated 

on the application is when the applicant will have all items cleaned up and vacate the property.  

Applicants must remove all self-generated trash from the site themselves and reconfigure the property 

to its original condition before leaving the property. The cost of any employee time incurred because of 

an applicant’s failure to clean and/or reset the property following the use will be borne by the applicant. 

The County’s Passive Park facilities are smoke-free environments, and the use of illegal substances is 

strictly prohibited at any Passive Park property or facility. 

Property Use and Fee Schedule 

Beaufort County may impose restrictions on the month, day, time and/or location of use of a Passive 

Park property or facility. Restrictions may be due, but not limited, to presence of threatened or 

endangered species, public enjoyment of the property, overuse of the property, and/or other scheduled 

events or programming. Any restrictions will be discussed with the applicant during the application 

review process. 

All business use of County Passive Park properties or facilities are subject to the following fee schedule 

and requirements: 

 If requesting the use of Passive Park property on an hourly basis: 

o $50.00 for each four (4) hours of use 

 

 If requesting the use of Passive Park property on a reoccurring basis: 

o  $200.00 for every twelve (12) months of use (annual fee), and 

o A requested monthly schedule shall be provided with application (if known), or 

o Written notification of requested date for use (to be provided by the 1st of any given 

month for use during that month and no less than ten (10) business days prior to the 

date of use) 

Hourly use of Passive Park property is defined as use that occurs on an occasional basis for a limited 

period of time. 

33

Item 9.



January 2024 
 

4 

Reoccurring use of Passive Park property is defined as use that occurs on a regular basis. Reoccurring 

use may only be permitted up to one time per month for each month of the permitted year. Businesses 

that fail to comply with the notification requirement for reoccurring use will be charged an additional 

fee of $50.00 per violation. 

Business use may not exceed 8 hours of time on any given day during property open hours (dawn to 

dusk). Business use will not be approved during property closed hours (dusk to dawn). The total use fee 

amount will be determined at the time of the application submittal and will be required to be paid by 

check or money order at least three (3) business days prior to the date of requested use (see the 

Payment section). 

Insurance, Licenses and Liability 

Applicants are required to provide proof of insurance coverage. The applicant must submit a copy of 

their Certificate of Insurance verifying current and valid coverage and specifically identifying “Beaufort 

County” as an Additional Insured. Beaufort County does not sell insurance. This type of insurance policy 

can be acquired from most private insurance carriers. 

Applicants are required to provide proof of applicable business license(s). The applicant must submit a 

copy of their Beaufort County business license, as well as a copy of any other business license required 

to operate in the city and/or town the applicant conducts business. 

Applicants requesting fee waivers due to nonprofit or educational institution status are required to 

provide proof of such status. 

The County accepts no responsibility for the personal safety of any person, either inside or outside a 

Passive Park property and/or facility. The County is not responsible for damage, loss, or theft of personal 

property. 

Ethical Standards  

The County presumes that all applicants conducting business on County Passive Park properties will 

uphold high ethical standards without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, 

national origin, and/or disability. Passive Park properties will not be approved for use by any group that 

advocates unconstitutional or illegal acts, or whose activities may be contrary to the best interests of 

the County or its citizens. No use shall be allowed that presents obvious danger to the safety of persons 

and property. 

Hold Harmless/Indemnification Clause 

Applicants assume all risks incident to or in connection with the permitted use and shall be solely 

responsible for damage or injury of whatever kind or nature, to person or property, directly or indirectly 

arising out of or in connection with the permitted use or the conduct of applicant’s operation.  

Applicants must expressly agree to defend, indemnify and to save the County harmless from any 

penalties for violation of law, ordinance, or regulation affecting its activity and from any and all claims, 

34

Item 9.



January 2024 
 

5 

suits, losses, damages, or injuries directly or indirectly arising out of or in connection with the permitted 

use or conduct of its operation or resulting from the negligence or intentional acts or omissions of 

applicant or its officers, agents, and employees. 

  

35

Item 9.



January 2024 
 

6 

Exhibit A 

Beaufort County Passive Parks Department 

Business Use Application 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Applicant/Contact Name: 
 
Business Name: 
 
Street Address: 
 
City/State/Zip: 
 
Phone Number: 
 
Email Address: 
 
Website Address: 
 

USE INFORMATION 

Type of Use: 
 

Use Activities (attach advertisement as separate sheet, if applicable): 
 
 
 

Number of Attendees: Per Person Fee: 

Requested Date(s) of Use (include schedule on separate sheet if needed): 
 
 

Start Time:  End Time: Total Time: 

Property and/or Facility Requested (include schedule on separate sheet if 
needed): 
 
 

36

Item 9.



January 2024 
 

7 

Non-profit/Educational Institution Fee Waiver Requested: _____ 
If checked, proof of status documentation is required with application. 

On a separate sheet, provide a site plan map sketch of the area requesting to be 
used, including all property amenities requesting to be used (i.e. restrooms, 
picnic tables, benches, etc.) and any items requesting to be placed on the 
property (i.e. tents, signs, banners, sets, etc.). 
 

 

I hereby stipulate that I have read and understand all the rules and regulations as set forth by 

the Business Use Policy and Application, its instructions, its associated Exhibit and the 

governing body of Beaufort County for the use of the property and/or facility. I agree to abide 

by the terms of the Business Use Policy and Application and further understand that if any of 

the terms are not complied with the County may terminate the permitted use. I also 

understand that proof of sufficient insurance and licensing will be required at the time of 

application submittal to the County. 

 

              

Applicant Signature        Date 

 

 

 

 

 

For Office Use Only 

Permit #:  
 

Approval Date:  

Staff Approval (Print Name): 
 

Staff Approval (Signature): 
 

Use 
Fee 

Due: $ Date Paid: Payment Type: 

Final Inspection 

Staff Initials: Date: 
 

37

Item 9.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF CAMP ST. MARY’S PARK CONCEPTUAL PLAN 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services and Land Use Committee; January 8, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Stefanie M. Nagid, Passive Parks Director (10 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

County Council approved the purchase of Camp St. Mary’s through the Rural and Critical Lands Preservation 
Program on July 10, 2023. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

In August 2023, the Passive Parks Director hired Wood and Partner’s to create a conceptual plan for Camp St. 
Mary’s Park. A public open house was held on November 9, 2023, which had over 30 participants providing 
feedback on a draft plan. The draft plan was revised based on public input and is being presented to the 
Committee for approval. If approved, the next step is to complete civil drawings and permitting for a future 
construction bid. An estimate of proposed costs is also included in the backup, however this estimate is for 
informational purposes only and approval of the conceptual plan does not constitute approval of future 
funds. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

$29,000 was spent from the Passive Parks Fund (4502 Fund) for the creation of the conceptual plan 
($1,971,000 remains for hazardous material surveys, demolition, civil planning, permitting and construction). 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the Camp St. Mary’s Park conceptual plan as presented. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve, modify, or deny the Camp St. Mary’s Park conceptual plan. 

Only Committee approval is necessary. 

 

38

Item 10.



39

Item 10.



Camp St. Mary's Park Prepared For:  Beaufort County, SC   
Conceptual Master Plan Prepared by:
Beaufort County, South Carolina
Opinion of Probable Costs based on Conceptual Plan Dated December 15th, 2023 December 15th, 2023

   UNIT TOTAL
 DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE COST

A. CONTRACTORS GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. General Conditions  (7.5%) 1 LS $110,033.48 $110,033.48

CONTRACTORS GENERAL CONDITIONS Subtotal:  $110,033.48

B. SITE PREPARATION 

1. Construction Access (Tracking Pad) 1 Allowance $500.00 $500.00
2. Mobilization / Demobilization 1 Allowance $25,000.00 $25,000.00
3. Survey Stakeout & As-Built 1 Allowance $7,500.00 $7,500.00
4. Erosion Control Measures 1 Allowance $50,000.00 $50,000.00
5. Tree Protection Fencing 1 Allowance $15,000.00 $15,000.00
6. Site Clearing & Grubbing 1 Allowance $15,000.00 $15,000.00

SITE PREPARATION  Subtotal:  $113,000.00

C. EARTHWORK, GRADING & DEMOLITION

1. Earthwork / Fine Grading 9,000 SY $11.00 $99,000.00
2. Minor Demolition (Excludes Existing Stuctures To Be Removed Under Separate Contract) 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00
3. Misc. Site Cleanup 1 Allowance $5,000.00 $5,000.00
4. Unknown Conditions Allowance 1 Allowance $7,500.00 $7,500.00

EARTHWORK, GRADING & DEMOLITION Subtotal:  $126,500.00

D. UTILITIES & STORM DRAINAGE

1. Tie Into Existing Well Service 1 Allowance $5,000.00 $5,000.00
2. Waterline For Restroom 1 Allowance $10,000.00 $10,000.00
3. Bioretention Areas (If Required) For Parking & Drive Enhancement 1 Allowance $75,000.00 $75,000.00
4. Storm Drainage System For Entry (HDPE, Yard Inlets, Etc. As Required For Parking & Drive 1 Allowance $50,000.00 $50,000.00
5. New Septic System For Restroom Building 1 Allowance $25,000.00 $25,000.00

UTILITIES & STORM DRAINAGE Subtotal:  $165,000.00

E. SITE ELECTRICAL

1. Single Security Light At Entry 1 Allowance $10,000.00 $10,000.00
2. Misc. Site Electrical (For Gate Operation, Restroom/Shelter To Tie To Existing Power On Site) 1 Allowance $20,000.00 $20,000.00
3. Uplights at Entry Gate Signage 1 Allowance $5,000.00 $5,000.00
4. Camera At Entry Gate 1 Allowance $5,000.00 $5,000.00

SITE ELECTRICAL Subtotal:  $40,000.00

F. HARDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT

1. Vehicular Control Gate at Park Entrance 1 LS $38,000.00 $38,000.00
2. Entry Sign Wall & Columns at Control Gate 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00
3. Crushed Aggregate Drive Aisle 12,734 SF $7.00 $89,138.00
4. Crushed Aggregate Parking Stalls (17 Total) 2,995 SF $7.00 $20,965.00
5. Concrete Wheel Stops 19 EA $200.00 $3,800.00
6. Diamond 4 Rail Perimeter & Parking Area Wood Fence 1,178 LF $75.00 $88,350.00
7. Decorative Permeable Pavers (Pedestrian) At Dock Enterance 380 SF $18.00 $6,840.00
8. Concrete Walks (Around Parking Lot & ADA Parking Spaces) 6,360 SF $8.00 $50,880.00
9. Repair Chainlink Fencing Along Western Property Line; Add Screening 1 Allowance $8,500.00 $8,500.00
10. Kayak Launch 1 Allowance $25,000.00 $25,000.00
11. Permeable Pavers At Kayak Laydown Area 330 SF $18.00 $5,940.00

Page 1 
40

Item 10.



Camp St. Mary's Park Prepared For:  Beaufort County, SC   
Conceptual Master Plan Prepared by:
Beaufort County, South Carolina
Opinion of Probable Costs based on Conceptual Plan Dated December 15th, 2023 December 15th, 2023

   UNIT TOTAL
 DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE COST

12. Asphalt Entry Drive 475 SY $62.00 $29,450.00
13. 12" Flush Concrete Ribbon Curb 1,915 LF $30.00 $57,450.00
14. Concrete HC Parking Stalls (2 Total - 6" ) 480 SF $10.00 $4,800.00
15. Arbor Swings 2 EA $18,000.00 $36,000.00

HARDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT Subtotal:  $480,113.00

G. LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT

1. Hydroseed Disturbed Areas 1 Allowance $10,000.00 $10,000.00

LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT Subtotal:  $10,000.00

H. SITE FURNISHINGS & SIGNAGE

1. Park ID / Info Sign On Entry Columns 2 EA $3,000.00 $6,000.00
2. Handicap/Van Parking Signs on Wood Posts 2 EA $500.00 $1,000.00
3. Decorative Wood Bollards At Drop-Off 16 EA $1,500.00 $24,000.00
4. One-Way Directional Sign / Traffic Control 1 EA $1,500.00 $1,500.00

SITE FURNISHINGS & SIGNAGE Subtotal:  $32,500.00

I. BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES

1. 18' x 24' Shelter 1 Allowance $225,000.00 $225,000.00
2. Restroom Building (2 Family WC With Storage Area & Water Fountain) 1 Allowance $275,000.00 $275,000.00

 BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES Subtotal:  $500,000.00

Summary $1,577,146.48

20%  Contingency $315,429.30

PROJECT TOTAL $1,892,575.77

OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST:

Page 2 
41

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY 
DOCUMENTS AND TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF TAX MAP SERIAL NUMBER TMS R600-021-
000-0078-0000 AND ALSO KNOWN AS BARRELL LANDING ORR 

 

Community Services and Land Use Committee, January 8, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Amanda Flake, Natural Resource Planner (5 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Rural and Critical Land Preservation Board (RCLPB) recommended to pursue due diligence on 5/11/23, 
Community Services and Land Use Committee recommended due diligence on 6/12/23, RCLPB recommended 
to purchase on 11/9/23 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Barrell Landing Orr - Property consists of approximately 1.82 acres, zoned Community Center Mixed Use in 
unincorporated Beaufort County in the Okatie watershed.  The property is surrounded almost entirely by 
existing RCLP Program acquisitions. Its purchase would improve the County’s access to those investments and 
make the County property boundary whole.  
 
The proposed purchase includes opportunity to purchase real property identified as R600-021-000-0078-0000 
and also known as Barrell Landing Orr.  The agreed upon purchase price is $434,000.00 plus closing costs.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not to exceed $434,000.00 plus closing costs.  (Account # 4500 with a balance of $8,022,377) 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval as submitted   

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve purchase of Barrell Landing Orr. 

Motion to reject purchase of Barrell Landing Orr.   

 

42

Item 11.



RESOLUTION 2024/_____ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE 

THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS AND TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF 

TAX MAP SERIAL NUMBER TMS R600-021-000-0078-0000 AND ALSO KNOWN AS BARRELL 

LANDING FEE 

 

 WHEREAS, Seller wishes to sell and Purchaser wishes to purchase fee simple interest on 

property currently identified as R600-021-000-0078-0000 of +/- 1.82 acres and also known as Barrell 

Landing Fee (“Property”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the fee simple purchase of the Property has been demonstrated to meet the Critical 

Lands Criteria of the Rural and Critical Lands Program (“RCLP”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Property is within unincorporated Beaufort County and is surrounded by 

properties previously acquired with funding from the RCLP and owned by Beaufort County; and  

 

WHEREAS, the proposal for the Property is for a fee simple acquisition, a purchase price not to 

exceed $434,000 plus closing costs with funds coming from the Rural & Critical Program; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed purchase of the Property was presented to the Rural and Critical Land 

Preservation Board (RCLPB) at the November 9, 2023 meeting and the RCLPB unanimously 

recommended approval of the purchase; and  

 

 WHEREAS, County Council finds that it is in the best interest of the citizens and residents of 

Beaufort County for the Interim County Administrator to execute the necessary documents for the fee 

simple acquisition and purchase of the Property.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council, duly assembled, does 

hereby authorize the Interim County Administrator to execute the necessary documents and provide 

funding up to $434,000.00 plus closing costs for the purchase of real property identified as TMS R600-

021-000-0078-0000 and also known as Barrell Landing Fee. 

 

Adopted this ____ day of ______________, 2024.  

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY  

 

 

BY:        

             Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

     

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

43

Item 11.



 

 

 

 

Project Analysis: Barrell Landing Orr 
 

PROPOSAL FOR:  Fee Purchase 

• PROPERTY ID:   TMS# R600-021-000-0078-0000 
• OWNER:   Michael Orr 
• ACREAGE:   1.82 acres 
• PARTNERS:    n/a 
• TOTAL PRICE:   $434,000 
• PRICE Negotiated/Acre:  $238,461/acre 
• RCLPP FUNDS:   $434,000 
• APPRAISED VALUE:  $434,000 
• ZONING:   Community Center Mixed Use 
• COUNCIL DISTRICT:     5 (Passiment) 
• LOCATION:   20 Barrell Landing Road, Bluffton 

 

Project Location and Attributes: 

 Property is located off of Barrell Landing Road 

 Property is completely surrounded by County Owned property and is the current source of 

access to County owned property 

 Access/use/benefit/enjoyment of Barrell landing park is improved by ownership 

 Okatie River Watershed 

 

Purchase and Cost Structure: 

 Fee simple purchase at appraised value proposed 

44

Item 11.



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45

Item 11.



46

Item 11.



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  )   

) AGREEMENT TO SELL AND  

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT   ) PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY  

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT TO SELL AND PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY (“Agreement”) is 

made and entered into this _____ day of ____________ 2024, by and between MICHAEL 

AND JULIE ORR ("Seller") and BEAUFORT COUNTY, a subdivision of the State of South 

Carolina ("Purchaser"); hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties”. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto had preliminary discussions with regards to the sale and purchase 

of certain real property located in the Okatie area of Beaufort County, South Carolina, and it is 

their desire to document their understandings with respect to said sale and purchase. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual promises and 

covenants herein contained the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Real Property. The Seller agrees to sell and the Purchaser agrees to purchase certain real 

property containing approximately one and eight two tenths (1.82) acres with TMS R600-021-

000-0078-0000, commonly known as Barrell Landing and as further described in Exhibit A 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; hereinafter collectively referred to as the 

“Property".     

 

2. Purchase Price. The purchase price of the Property shall be FOUR HUNDRED, 

THIRTY-FOUR THOUSAND ($434,000.00) Dollars (“Purchase Price”).  

 

3. Conveyance of Title.  The Seller shall convey fee simple title of the Property to the 

County.  Seller agrees to convey the Property by marketable title, free and clear of all liens and 

encumbrances whatsoever and those agreed upon to be assumed by Purchaser (the “Permitted 

Exceptions”).  Purchaser shall have the responsibility to examine the title to the Property. 

Purchaser shall notify Seller in writing of any title defects during the Inspection Period.  Seller 

shall have twenty (20) days from the date of such notification in which to cure such defects at its 

own expense or to decline to cure such defects noted by Purchaser.  Seller shall notify Purchaser 

in writing of Seller’s election to cure or decline to cure such defects noted by Purchaser within 

ten (10) days of receipt of Purchaser’s notice.  Purchaser shall then have five (5) days from the 

date of Seller’s notice within which to notify Seller of Purchaser’s termination of this Agreement 

for lack of sufficient cure to such defects.  Absent Seller’s receipt of notice from Purchaser 

within said five (5) day period, all of Purchaser’s outstanding defects shall be deemed Permitted 

Exceptions, and the Closing shall be held on or before the date provided for Closing in this 

Agreement.    

 

4. Survey. Seller engaged T Square land surveyors, licensed in South Carolina, to prepare a 

boundary survey of the Property (the "Survey"), which shall be certified to Purchaser and the 

title insurers.   

47

Item 11.



 

5. Inspection. Purchaser hereby acknowledges and agrees that Purchaser has or will 

thoroughly inspect and examine the Property prior to closing. Purchaser is responsible for 

obtaining inspection reports from qualified professionals to assess the Property. 

 

a) Inspection Period. Purchaser may cancel this Agreement at any time prior to 

January  30, 2024 (the “Inspection Period”). Purchaser shall notify Seller in writing of its desire 

to cancel this Agreement. This Agreement shall be cancelled immediately upon Seller’s receipt 

of written cancellation notice, and neither party shall have any further obligations hereunder. 

 

b) Right of Access for Inspection. Purchaser and/or its agents shall have the privilege 

of going upon the Property at any time during the existence of this Agreement to inspect, 

examine, survey and to make test borings, soil boring tests and any other tests which the 

Purchaser may deem necessary, at Purchaser’s expense. Purchaser assumes all responsibility for 

the acts of itself, its agents or representatives in exercising its rights under Agreement.   

 

6. Closing. The Closing occurs when Purchaser transfers the Purchase Price to Seller and 

Seller conveys title of the Property to Purchaser. 

 

a) Closing. The Closing shall occur on or before January 31, 2024 (“Closing Date”) 

at the office of Purchaser’s attorney, or on such other date, place and/or time as the Parties may 

mutually agree. 

 

b) Closing Costs and Prorations. All current real estate taxes, assessments, dues and 

other proratable items, if any, shall be apportioned pro rata on a per diem basis as of the Closing 

Date.  All taxes for any years prior to 2024 shall be the responsibility of the Seller. Seller shall be 

responsible for paying the South Carolina recording fee (formerly referred to as documentary 

stamps), transfer tax to be affixed to the deed and related transfer documents, if any such fee or 

tax be applicable to this transaction. Purchaser shall be responsible for any other fees for 

recording the deed and for any of its financing costs. Each party shall be responsible for its own 

legal fees.  

 

7. Brokerage Fees.  Seller represents that the Property is not subject to a listing contract 

with any real estate broker.   The Parties agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless from 

any claim of commission by others arising by, through or on account of the acts of the Parties.  

  

8. Seller's Delivery of Documentation. Seller shall deliver to Purchaser at or before the 

Closing Date (at such times as Purchaser may reasonably request) a Limited Warranty Deed, the 

delivery and accuracy of which shall be a condition to Purchaser's obligation to consummate the 

purchase and sale herein contemplated. 

 

9. Conditions Precedent.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated herein, the 

obligations of Purchaser to purchase the property are expressly made subject to the Seller’s 

representation that as of the Closing Date the warranties and representations of Seller shall be 

true and correct. The foregoing conditions are for the sole benefit of and may be waived by 

Purchaser by written notice to Seller. 

48

Item 11.



 

10. Default. If Purchaser or Seller fails to perform any provision of this Agreement, the other 

party may elect to seek any remedy provided in equity (but not at law for money damages) as a 

result of such failure to perform, including an action for specific performance of Seller’s 

obligations under this Agreement, or terminate this Agreement with a written notice. If 

terminated, both Parties agree to cooperatively pursue their obligations set forth herein in good 

faith. 

 

11. Notices. Any notice, communication, request, approval or consent which may be given or 

is required to be given under the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 

transmitted (1) via hand delivery or express overnight delivery service to the Seller or the 

Purchaser, (2) via facsimile with the original to follow via hand delivery or overnight delivery 

service, or (3) via e-mail, provided that the sending party can show proof of delivery, as the case 

may be, at the addresses/numbers set forth below: 

 

TO PURCHASER: Beaufort County  

Attn:  John Robinson 

Post Office Drawer 1228 

Beaufort, SC  29901-1228 

 

Copy to: Beaufort County 

Attn: Thomas J. Keaveny, II 

Post Office Box 1228 

Beaufort, SC 29901 

 

Thomas A. Bendle, Jr.  

Howell, Gibson and Hughes PA 

Post Office Box 40 

Beaufort, SC 29901 

 

 

TO SELLER: 

 

 

 

Copy to:  Michael and Julie Orr 

3622 Barnesmore Drive 

Castle Hayne, NC 28429 

 

Walter Nester III 

23-B Shelter Cove Lane, Suite 400 

Hilton Head Island, South Carolina 29928 

 

12. Assignment by Purchaser. Purchaser shall have the right to assign this Agreement to a 

related entity by giving Seller notice of such assignment (which shall include the name and 

address of the Assignee) together with an executed counterpart of the assignment wherein such 

49

Item 11.



Assignee assumes the performance of all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement on the 

part of the Purchaser to be performed. 

 

13. Condemnation. In the event that at the time of Closing all or any part of the Property is 

acquired, or is about to be acquired, by authority of any governmental agency in the exercise of 

its power of eminent domain or by private purchase in lieu thereof (or in the event that at such 

time there is any threat or imminence of any such acquisition by any such governmental agency), 

Purchaser shall have the right, at its option, to terminate this Agreement, or to purchase only so 

much of the Property not condemned or under threat of condemnation, in which event the 

purchase price and terms shall be adjusted accordingly. 

 

14. No Joint Venture. It is understood and agreed between the Parties hereto that this is an 

agreement for the sale of real estate and is in no way to be considered a joint venture between the 

Parties. It is further understood and agreed that Purchaser is assuming no liabilities, whether 

fixed or contingent, of Seller, and that this is a purchase of real estate assets. 

 

15. Entire Agreement. This Agreement incorporates any and all prior agreements, 

covenants, and understandings between the Parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, 

and all such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into this agreement. 

No prior agreement or understandings, verbal or otherwise, of the Parties or their agent shall be 

valid or enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement. 

 

16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. Each of the 

counterparts shall be deemed an original instrument, but all of the counterparts shall constitute 

one and the same instrument.  

 

17. Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or 

unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and 

enforceable. If a court finds that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable, 

then such provision shall be deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited.  

 

18. Amendment.  This Agreement cannot be amended orally or by a single party. No 

amendment or change to this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by both 

Parties to this Agreement. 

 

19. Authority.  Each individual and entity executing this Agreement hereby represents and 

warrants that he, she or its has the capacity set forth on the signature pages hereof with full 

power and authority to bind the party on whose behalf he, she or it is executing this Agreement 

to terms hereof. 

 

20. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of South Carolina shall govern the interpretation, 

validity, performance, and enforcement of this Agreement, and, of any personal guarantees given 

in connection with this Agreement. 

 

50

Item 11.



21. Time is of the Essence.  The time and dates specified in this Agreement shall be 

enforced; however, the time and dates may be modified for reasonable cause when both Parties 

agree in writing to a reasonable extension. 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and in acknowledgement that the Parties hereto have read and 

understood each and every provision hereof, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be 

executed on the date first written above. 

 

 

WITNESSES:    PURCHASER:  

 

_________________________  ____________________________________ 

      John Robinson 

_________________________  Interim Beaufort County Administrator       

 

 

WITNESSES:    SELLER: 

 

 

_________________________  ________________________________ 

By: ____________________________ 

Its: _____________________________ 

 _________________________    

  

  

51

Item 11.



Exhibit A 

 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 

Beaufort County Tax Map:  R600-021-000-0078-0000 

52

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO UNDERTAKE DUE DILIGENCE AND DISCUSSIONS/NEGOTIATIONS FOR THE 
PROPOSED FEE SIMPLE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS RAWSTROM ROAD 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services and Land Use Committee, January 8 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Amanda Flake, Natural Resource Planner 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Rural and Critical Land Preservation Board recommended approval for due diligence on 11/9/23 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Rawstrom Road is recommended for due diligence.  Purchase would protect 12 acres adjacent to Altamaha 
Heritage Preserve (DNR) and improve access to the property; property is in Okatie watershed. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

$10,000-due diligence fees Beaufort County Rural and Critical Land Preservation Program Bond Referendum 
(Account # 4500) 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve due diligence for Rawstrom Road 

Motion to modify due diligence for Rawstrom Road 

Motion to reject due diligence for Rawstrom Road 

 

 

53

Item 12.



 

 

 

 

Project Analysis: Rawstrom Road Fee 
 

PROPOSAL FOR:  Due Diligence Fee 

• PROPERTY ID:   TMS#  R600 009 000 0030 0000 
• OWNER:   New South Livin LLC 
• ACREAGE:   11.66 acres 
• PARTNERS:    unknown 
• TOTAL PRICE:   unknown, list price is $1.84m 
• PRICE Negotiated/Acre:  unknown 
• RCLPP FUNDS:   unknown 
• APPRAISED VALUE:  unknown 
• ZONING:   T2-Rural  
• COUNCIL DISTRICT:     5 (Passiment) 
• LOCATION:   100 Rawstrom Drive, Okatie SC  

 

Project Location and Attributes: 

 Property is located off Bailey Road, adjacent to SCDNR Altamaha Heritage Trust Preserve 

 Would reduce construction immediately adjacent to HTP and facilitate county access 

 Lot includes the private road for access 

 

Purchase and Cost Structure: 

 Fee for Passive park 

 Neighboring 8.5 acres may also be available (167 Old Bailey Road) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

54

Item 12.

http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R600%20009%20000%200030%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net


 

 

55

Item 12.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO UNDERTAKE DUE DILIGENCE AND DISCUSSIONS/NEGOTIATIONS FOR THE 
PROPOSED FEE SIMPLE PURCHASE OR PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS OF REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS 
SEASIDE ROAD 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services and Land Use Committee, January 8 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Amanda Flake, Natural Resource Planner 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Rural and Critical Land Preservation Board recommended approval for due diligence on 11/9/23 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Seaside Road PDR/Fee is recommended for due diligence.  PDR would protect 9.36 acres of active farmland, 
in marsh migration and farming corridor off Seaside Road, Fee would protect property across the street to be 
owned and maintained similar to other vista projects such as Blocker Field Extension; Proposed fee property 
is adjacent to cemetery.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

$10,000-due diligence fees Beaufort County Rural and Critical Land Preservation Program Bond Referendum 
(Account # 4500) 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve due diligence for Seaside Road  

Motion to modify due diligence for Seaside Road 

Motion to reject due diligence for Seaside Road 

 

 

56

Item 13.



 

 

 

 

Project Analysis: Seaside Road PDR/FEE 
 

PROPOSAL FOR:  Due Diligence PDR / Fee 

• PROPERTY ID:   TMS#  R300 023 000 128B 0000,  R300 023 000 128C 0000, 
R300 023 000 128D 0000 and : R300 023 000 128A 0000 (fee) 

• OWNER:   Luke Inabinett 
• ACREAGE:   10.73 acres total (9.36 CE, 1.37 fee) 
• PARTNERS:    OLT on fee property requested 
• TOTAL PRICE:   unknown 
• PRICE Negotiated/Acre:  unknown 
• RCLPP FUNDS:   unknown 
• APPRAISED VALUE:  unknown 
• ZONING:   T2-Rural CPO 
• COUNCIL DISTRICT:     3 (Glover) 
• LOCATION:   1047 Seaside Road, St Helena 

 

Project Location and Attributes: 

 Property is located off Seaside road, adjacent to 660 acres formerly known as “Henry Farms” 

 Proposed fee property is adjacent to cemetery previously under development threat 

 Proposed fee property could be maintained by OLT in similar nature to nearby properties, will 

be presented to OLT board on 11/27 

 

Purchase and Cost Structure: 

 CE on 9.36 acres, one house exists.  

 Under small lot subdivision standards, 5 houses could be built on 9.36 acres.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57

Item 13.

http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R300%20023%20000%20128B%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R300%20023%20000%20128C%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R300%20023%20000%20128D%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R300%20023%20000%20128A%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net


 

 

 

58

Item 13.


	Top
	Item 5.	CITIZEN COMMENTS
	CC comments

	Item 7.	(TK)APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 22/51
	AIS Resolution Amending Resolution 2022.51 Housing Trust - Amended Resolution
	RESOLUTION 2022.51 AMENDED FINAL DRAFT -12.21.2023
	Exhibit A Draft 2023 (2)

	Item 8.	(TK)RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE BFT.JASPER HOUSING TRUST, INC.
	AIS - Resolution Authorizing Contract with B-JHT 2024
	Resolution- Final
	Exhibit A

	Item 9.	(SN) RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE PASSIVE PARKS DEPARTMENT PRIVATE BUSINESS USE POLICY, APPLICATION AND FEE SCHEDULE
	00_PP Business Use Policy_AIS
	01_PP Business Use Policy_Resolution
	02_PP Business Use Policy

	Item 10.	(SN)REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF CAMP ST. MARY'S PARK CONCEPTUAL PLAN
	00_Camp St Mary Conceptual Plan_AIS
	01_Camp St Mary Conceptual Plan
	02_Camp St Mary Cost Estimate

	Item 11.	(AF)RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS AND TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF TAX MAP SERIAL NUMBER TMS R600-021-000-0078-0000 AND ALSO KNOWN AS BARRELL LANDING ORR
	AIS Project Barrell Landing Orr
	Project Barrell Landing Orr Resolution.2
	Barrell Landing Orr Fee Project Analysis Purchase
	Barrell Landing Orr Plat
	Project Barrell Landing Orr PSA

	Item 12.	(AF)RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO UNDERTAKE DUE DILIGENCE AND DISCUSSIONS/NEGOTIATIONS FOR THE PROPOSED FEE SIMPLE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS RAWSTROM ROAD
	AIS Rawstrom Road Fee
	Rawstrom Road Fee Project Analysis due diligence

	Item 13.	(AF)RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO UNDERTAKE DUE DILIGENCE AND DISCUSSIONS/NEGOTIATIONS FOR THE PROPOSED FEE SIMPLE PURCHASE OR PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS OF REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS SEASIDE ROAD
	AIS Seaide Road PDR FEE
	Seaside Road PDR FEE Project Analysis due diligence.2

	Bottom

